# University of New Mexico UNM Digital Repository

Faculty Senate Documents

**Faculty Senate** 

8-1-1951

# Faculty Senate Constitution, 1951-1952

UNM Faculty Senate

Follow this and additional works at: https://digitalrepository.unm.edu/fs\_documents

## **Recommended** Citation

UNM Faculty Senate. "Faculty Senate Constitution, 1951-1952." (1951). https://digitalrepository.unm.edu/fs\_documents/121

This Policy is brought to you for free and open access by the Faculty Senate at UNM Digital Repository. It has been accepted for inclusion in Faculty Senate Documents by an authorized administrator of UNM Digital Repository. For more information, please contact disc@unm.edu.

# THE UNIVERSITY OF NEW MEXICO

Article I. The University Faculty

Sec, 1 (a) Membership: The University Faculty shall consist of the Professors, Associate Professors, Assistant Professors, and Instructors, including part-time and temporary appointees. The President of the University, Academic Vice-President, Deans of Colleges and Schools, Assistant Deans, Personnel Deans, Directors of Schools or Divisions, Librarian, Director of Admissions, Head of Counselling and Testing Services, and Comptrolle: shall be ex officio members of the Faculty whether or not they are actively engaged in teaching.

(b) Members of the University Faculty who are eligible to vote (called "the Voting Faculty") shall include all members who are full-time employees of the University after serving the following terms: Instructors, three years: Assistant Professors and higher, one year. The President of the University, Academic Vice-President, Deans of Colleges and Schools, Assistant Deans. Personnel Deans. Directors of Schools or Divisions. Heads or Acting Heads of Departments, Librarian, Director of Admissions, Head of Counselling and Testing Services, and Comptroller shall be ex officio members of the Voting Faculty. No person holding an interim or temporary appointment on the teaching staff shall be a member of the Voting Faculty unless he be a member ex officio.

(c) Questions of eligibility for voting which may arise shall be settled by the presiding officer of the Faculty. Any appeal from his decision should be taken to the Voting Faculty. The officers shall prepare at the beginning of each academic year the official list of the membership of the Faculty and of the Voting Faculty as defined above.

Sec. 2 Responsibilities: The University faculty shall have the right of review and final action in regard to the following: (1) formulation of institutional aims; (2) creation of new colleges, schools, and departments and divisions: (3) major curricular changes and other matters which in the opinion of the President of the University or his delegate affect the institution as a whole; (4) requirements for admission and graduation and for honors and scholastic performance in general; (5) approval of candidates for degrees; (6) regulations affecting student life and activities; (7) policies of appointment, dismissal, and promotion in academic rank; and (8) general faculty welfare. Provided, however, that actions taken by the University faculty shall be subject to the authority of the Regents in matters involving finance, personnel, and general University policy.

Sec. 3 (a) Organization: The President of the University. or in his absence the Academic Vice-President, shall be the presiding officer of the University Faculty. The Voting Faculty shall elect a Vice-Chairman for one year, and a Secretary for three years.

		1	1			1		1	•														
								100			-		 1										
																3							
		1		-	-		-										-						
						1				110		1		1		1							
		-					1				-							-					
				-							-												
			4														2						
	1					-																	
	1		-	100			*												1				

### FACULTY CONSTITUTION

Page 2 - Faculty Constitution

(b) The Vice-Chairman shall preside in the absence of the President and the Academic Vice-President, or when the presiding officer so requests, or when under Robert's <u>Rules of Order</u>, except as modified by Faculty vote, the presiding officer wishes to speak from the floor.

Sec. 4 (a) Procedure: The University Faculty shall conduct business according to Robert's Rules of Order, except as modified by Faculty vote.

(b) The agenda for University Faculty meetings shall be prepared by the Secretary, and a stenographer not a member of that Faculty shall keep verbatim minutes of such meetings. The Secretary shall mail to every member of the University Faculty a summary of the minutes and the complete minutes shall be open to inspection by any member.

Sec. 5 (a) Meetings: The University Faculty shall meet monthly during the school year, exclusive of the summer session, at a place and time determined by the presiding officer.

(b) One-third of the membership of the Voting Faculty on active duty during a semester shall constitute a quorum for business. Hembers not on active duty may, however, attend meetings and vote.

(c) Special meetings shall be called by the presiding officer at his discretion, or whenever a request in writing is made by fifteen members of the Voting Faculty or by a majority vote of any College Faculty.

Sec. 6 (a) Committees: There shall be a Policy Committee empowered (1) to define duties, nominate members, and designate chairmen for the standing committees of the University Faculty, subject to consultation with the President of the University and confirmation by the Voting Faculty; (2) to schedule reports from any of these committees at designated meetings of the University Faculty; (3) to consider matters of educational policy in general whenever such matters are not appropriate to any special committee; (4) to make reports and recommendations direct to the University Faculty for action by that body; and (5) to express to the Regents and others Faculty points of view when authorized to do so by the Voting Faculty. By petition of members of the Faculty, singly or in groups, the Policy Committee shall serve to represent such members before the Regents in any matter believed worthy by that Committee.

(b) The Policy Committee shall be elected as follows: one member elected by each of the College Faculties; one member elected by the Graduate Committee; and three members-at-large elected by the Voting Faculty, of which not more than two shall be from any one College. Deans and <u>ex officio</u> members shall not be eligible to serve on this Committee. For each new College created a member shall be added to the Policy Committee as representative of that College. Members shall be elected to the Policy Committee for a term of two years. A member cannot serve more than four years in succession. A member who has served on the Committee is eligible for reelection after a

### THE UNITARSIES OF MEM INAL

MOLTOFICEMOD YEUDAY

Article I. The University Reculty

Sec. 1. (a) Membershipi The University Faculty shall consist of the Professors, associate: Professors; assistent Professors, and Instructors, including mert-time and temporary appointees. The President of the University, designed Vice-Freekdont, Reams of Colleges and Schools, assistent desay, Personnel Datus, Directors of Schools or Sivisions, Libration, Edrector of admissiont, Lead of Counselling and Testing Services, and Constrain shall be ex officio members of the Faculty whether or not they are notively entryed in teaching.

(called "the Poting Reculty") shall include all members who are full-take with employees of the University ofter serving the following terms: Instructors, three years; assistant Frofessors and higher, we year. The Presignt of the University, academic Vice-Freshdent, Peans of Colleges and Concols, as at the Parasenel Dean, Directors of Schools of Divisions, Haste of at the Paras of Revieweds, Interations of Schools of Divisions, Haste of at the Paras of Revieweds, Interations, Director of Athenia, Test and the Paras of Revieweds, Interations, Director of Athenia, Feed of at the Paras of Revieweds, Interations, Director of Athenia, Feed of at the Parase of Revieweds, Interations, Director of Athenia, Feed of at the Parase of Revieweds, Interations, Director of Athenia, Feed of the Parase of Revieweds, Interations, Director of Athenia, Feed of the Parase feed is a sester of the Voting Feed by unlose to be the Feed of Schools of Schools and Schools and the termine staff shall be a member of the Voting Feed by unlose to be the Schools of Schools and Schools and the termine staff shall be a member of the Voting Feed by unlose to the termine.

(6) meetions of eligit life for voting which may arise shall be settled by the presiding officer of the Ecculty. Any appeal from the decision should be taken to the Voting Feculty. The efficers shall prepare at the beginning of each contain year the official list of the membership of the Seculty and of the Voting Feculty as defined above.

Sec. 2 Responsibilities. The University faculty shall have the right of a review and final cotical in report to the following: (1) formulation of the stitutional also; (2) creation of use colleges, though, and departments and the following of the following (1) and the following of the following of the following (1) and the following of the following (2) and the following of the following (1) and the following of the following of the following of the following (2) and the following of the following (2) and following of the following the following of the following the following the following of the following the

Sec. 3 (a) Organization: The Fresident of the University, or in its sheance the Academic Vice-Disaident, shall be the dresiding officer of the Introvetty Teoulby: The Voting Troutly shall elect a Vice-Chairman for one rear; and a Secretary for three years.

### Page 3 - Faculty Constitution.

period of two years. To originate the Committee, each of the eight Colleges or Schools shall draw lots to determine the four that shall elect members for one year; and the Voting Faculty shall elect three members preferentially, of which the first two shall hold office for two years, the third for one year. After the first election all members shall be elected for two years and elections shall be held whenever a vacancy exists by reason of the completion of a term or for other reasons. Normally these elections will take place as late in the academic year as possible.

Committee.

(d) The University Faculty may elect special committees. These committees shall elect their own clairmen.

(e) Any member of the University Faculty is eligible for membership on standing and special committees except as stated in Article I, Section 6, paragraph (b). No single member shall serve on more than two standing committees at a time.

(f) The duties and responsibilities of every committee as defined by the Policy Committee shall be incorporated in the By-Laws of the University Faculty after approval by a majority of the Voting Faculty.

Article II. College and Departmental Organization.

Sec. I College Responsibilities: The Faculty of each College shall be an autonomous unit in all matters relating to that particular College, subject to review under the powers set forth in Article I. Section 2.

Sec. 2 Membership: Faculty membership for college and departmental voting purposes shall be as defined in Article I, Section 1 (a) (i.e., Instructors and above).

Sec. 3 (a) Procedure: The Faculty of each College shall decide upon the procedure for the efficient functioning of the College.

(b) Regular meetings shall be held at intervals agreed upon by the College Faculty. Special meetings shall be called by the presiding officer at his discretion, or whenever a request in writing is made by ten members of the College Faculty, or by a majority from a Faculty of fewer than twenty members.

Sec. 4 (a) Departments: The Faculty of each Department shall, with the advice and consent of the Dean of the College, decide upon the organization and procedure for the efficient functioning of the Department.

Page 2 - Faculty Constitution .

(b) .The Vice-Chairman shall preside in the absence of the Bresthant and the Academic Vice-President, or when the president officer so requests, or when under Robert's Rules of Order, except as nodifiedily Isculty vole, the presiding officer vignes to speak from the floor. ".

Sec. 4 (a) Procedure: The University Jaculty shall conduct business eccording to Robert's Juice of Order, except as modified by Tseuler vote.

(b) The agenda for University Faculty neutrage shall be prepared "". by the Secretary, and a stenegrepher not a rember of their Fernity aball . Reep verbotin ninutes of such nestings. The Secretary dual coil to every usuber of the University Faculty a summary of the minutes and the complete minutes shall be open to inspection by any nember.

Sec. 5 (a) Meetingst The University Peculty shall rest nonthly Suntug the school year, stolusive of the summer section, at a place and the determined by the presiding officer.

(a) One-third of the manhership of the Voting Troulty on active ... duty during a senester shall constitute a querum for business. Henvers not on sotive inty coy. however, attend neetings and vote.

(c) Special meetings shall be called by the presiding officer at his discretion, or whenever a request in writing is hade by fiftsen members of the Voting Iboulty or by a majority wote of any College Reculty.

Sec. 6 (a). Counities: Miere shall be a Policy Committee empowered (1) to define dubies, nominate members, and decignate chairman for the structure conditions of the University foculty, subject to consultation with the President of the University and confirmation by the Foting Fabulty: (2) to schedule reports from any of these counittees of designated meetings of the University Formity: (3) to consider matters of squcetional policy in constate such motters are n't appropriate to any special countities; (4) to puls reports and recommendations direct to the University Tomatty for action of that body; and (5) to supress to the Decents and others Recoiling points of view when authorized to do so by the Vating Febulty. By petition of members of the Reculty, singly of in george, the Folley Contitties shall serve to represent such members before the Beconts in thy mother believed

worthan or that Compittee.

(b) The Policy Countries anall De. Cleoted as followst one medber elected by each of the College Maguiltice; one somer elected by the Groundte Committee: and three manbers-pt-large elected of the Voting Reculty. of which not nore than two shall be from any one College. Doons and in officio membors shall not be elicible to carre on this Counittee. For securiny onling Crested S header shall be added to is Foldor Committee for sepressivity of that College, Headers Shall be of otal to the Poldor Committee for a term of two years. A manber chimet serve nore seru four years in succession. A avanber who has served on the Compittee in all this for replection viter a

(c) The Chairman of the Policy Committee shall be elected by the

Page 3 - Faculty Comstitution.

period of two years. To originate the Committee, each of the eight Colleges or Schools shall draw lots to deter ine the four that shall elect members for one year; and the Voting Jeculty shall alect three wanters preferentially. of which the first two chall hold office for two years, the third for one year. After the first election all members shall be elected for two years and elections shall be held whenever a vacancy exists by reason of the corpletion of a term or for other reasons. Normally these alections will take place as late in the sustanto year as possible.

(c) The Chairman of the Policy Countties shall be elected by the .confitmoj

(d) The University Faculty may elect special committees. These committees shall elect their own c -irmen.

(e) Any manber of the University Faculty is sligible for membership on standing and special countitiess except as stated in Article 1, Section 6. paragraph (b). He single member shall serve on more than two standing coinfitteds at a fime.

(f) The duties and responsibilities of every committee as defined by the Policy Counties shall be incorporated in the Ev-Lows of the Univeralty Faculty after approval by a majority of the Voting Faculty.

Article II. College and Departmental Organization.

Sec. I College Regental Milities: Whe Faculty of each College shall be on autonomous unit in all matters relating to that particular College, sub-Ject to review under the powers set forth in Article I. Section 2.

Sec. 2. Hembership: Faculty membership for college.and departmental voting purposes shell to as defined in Article I, Section 1. (b) (i.e., Instructors . (avods bas

-Sec. 3 (a) Procedure: The Recelty of each College shall decide upon the procedure for the efficient functioning of the College.

(b) Regular meetings shall be hold at intervale a read usen by the College Faculty. Special meatings shall be called by the presiding officer at his discretion, or whenever a request in writing is made by ten members of the College Faculty, or by a methrity from a Freulty of isser then twenty methion .

Sac. 4 (a) Devertidents: The Faculty of each Department shall, with the advice and consent of the Lean of the College, decide upon the organization and procedure for the efficient functioning of the Department. Page 4 - Faculty Constitution

(b) Meetings shall be called by the presiding officer at his discretion or whenever a request in writing is made by ten per cent of the departmental faculty.

Article III. The Administration

Sec. 1 The President: The President of the University shall be the principal officer of the University and with the assistance of his administrative officers shall carry out the measures enacted by the Voting Faculty within the scope of its responsibilities, and shall perform those duties assigned to him by the Regents.

Sec. 2 The Academic Vice-President: The Academic Vice-President shall perform such duties as the President may from time to time delegate to him.

Sec. 3 (a) Deans of Colleges and Schools: The appointment of Deans of Colleges shall be recommended to th Regents by the President after appropriate consultation with all Department Heads of the College concerned, University Officers, and other interested persons. The appointment of the Dean of the Graduate School shall be recommended to the Regents by the President after appropriate consultation with the Graduate Committee. University Officers, and other interested persons.

(b) The Dean shall be the principal officer of the College or School. He shall act as executive officer and representative of the College Faculty, and, with regard to educational policy, shall prepare plans for the consideration of his Faculty, shall carry into effect those plans which it adopts, and shall perform such other duties as properly fall within the scope of his office.

(c) The Dean shall be the presiding officer at meetings of the College Faculty. In case of his absence or inability to preside, he shall designate a substitute.

Sec. 4 Administrative Deans and Directors: The appointment of Personnel Deans and of Directors of Schools and Divisions (including the Librarian, the Director of Admissions, Head of Counselling and Testing Services, and the Comptroller) shall be recommended to the Regents by the President. They shall perform such duties as properly pertain to their offices.

Sec. 5 (a) The Administrative Committee: The President of the University shall appoint (with the exception of elected members) an Administrative Committee, or similar body, to perform such duties as he may prescribe.

(b) The Voting Faculty shall elect three members to the Administrative Committee, or similar body, who shall hold office for three years and shall be ineligible for re-election to an immediate successive term. The term of service of the elected faculty representatives shall be staggered so that no two shall run concurrently.

# Page 4 - Faculty Constitution

(b) Mestings shall be called by the providing officer at his discretion or thepever a request in unifing is note by ten per cent of the departmental foculty.

# Auticle III. The Addinistration

Such 1 The President: "The President of the University shall be the principal officer of the University and with the semistance of his childtetrative officers shall crity out the metatres emacted by the Voting and alty within the scope of its responsibilities and shall parform those dation scaland to him by the Regents.

perform such duties as the Freeleent may from time to time delegate to him.

See. 3 (a) Deers of Collecter and Concells: The amplituant of Rears is Collecter shall be recommanded to the Augente by the Prosident after opproprises consultation with all Department Seads of the Collect concerts, Othversity Officers, and other interested persons. The empointment of the Dan of the Graduate School shall be recommanded to the Regente by the President store and other interested persons. The empointment of the President after appropriate consultation with the Graduate Countities, University Cffloors, and other interested recommanded to the Regente by the President floors, and other interested recents.

(b) The Dean shall be bis principal offices of the College or School. He shall set as executive officer and representative of the College faculty, and, with repart is educational policy, shall prepare plane for the consideration of his Foculty, shall compy into effect these plane when it scopes, and shall conform and other duties as property fail within the scope of his office.

(a) The Seen shall be the presides offloor at meetings of the Gollege Techty, In once of his sharnes or insbilling to provide, he shall designate a substitute.

Bog.b Administrative Pause and Directory: The acgointmont of Ferenned Deans and of Directors of Scanois and Divisions (including the Mibrarian, the Director of Administrations, Need of Jourselling and Festing Services, and pho Oscotrajier) ghall be recommended to has degents by the President. The shall perform such Entire as properly perturn to ringer.

Sec. 5 (a) The advistrative Countiness The President of the University shall appears (with the exception of sloated members) on administrative Countities, or similar body, to perform such duties as he new preserve.

(b) The Voting Foulity shall algost three numbers to the Administer trative Coundities, or similar body, the shall bold office for three years and shall be instigible for revelegation to at invadiate macessive tars. The term of service of the algoted faculty percenterives shall be algored so that he two shall rup concurrently. Page 5 - Faculty Constitution

Article IV. General

Sec. 1 Adoption of Constitution: This Constitution shall be effective when approved by a two-thirds vote of the University Faculty present and voting and ratified by the Régents.

Sec. 2 Amendments: This constitution may be amended by a two-thirds vote of the Voting Faculty present and voting and ratification by the Regents. Amendments shall lie on the table for thirty days before final action.

<u>Sec. 3 By-Laws</u>: This Constitution shall be supplemented by By-Laws of the Faculty when such are adopted by a majority vote of the Voting Faculty; and by By-Laws of any College when such are adopted by majority vote of that College Faculty. Such By-Laws will normally include: (1) interpretations and implementations of this Constitution; (2) the Tenure Act of the University; (3) a statement of promotional policy; (4) a statement of the duties and responsibilities of the standing committees of the University Faculty; (5) other faculty regulations; and (6) college regulations.

Sec. 4 Distribution: This Constitution and the By-Laws of the Faculties shall be kept up to date as amended and distributed to the Faculty of the University at least once each year.

Approved by the University Faculty April 11, 1949. Ratified by the Regents May 14, 1949